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1. Background 

The objective of Royal Brisbane and Women's Hospital Foundation (RBWH Foundation) is to raise 
money for Royal Brisbane and Women's Hospital (RBWH) in order to provide better treatment 
methods and improve patient outcomes. Money raised is primarily used to fund world class clinical 
research, purchase medical equipment and promote disease awareness and prevention. 

RBWH is the largest tertiary hospital in Queensland, and fulfils a significant teaching and research 
role with links to Queensland's major tertiary institutions. 

RBWH Foundation is funded for the services it delivers through commercial activities, donations, 
sponsorship with support generated from individuals, businesses and community groups. 

RBWH Foundation supports the Queensland Government's "Getting Queensland back on track" 
objectives for the community. Particularly, revitalisation of front line health services for families. 

2. Regulatory Framework 

RBWH Foundation is established by Order in Council under the Hospital Foundations Act 1982 and is 
a statutory body within the meaning given in the Financial Accountability Act 2009. 

RBWH Foundation's financial statements are prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards and the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009. 

3. Strategic Objectives 

RBWH Foundation's strategic objectives are summarised in the attached Charter for Growth. 

4. Strategic Goals 

The 2010/11 financial year represented the second year of activities to achieve our goals and address 
the key issues identified in a strategic review completed in July 2009. This brought to a close, stage 
one activities which were aimed at stabilization and balance sheet strengthening sufficient to allow 
stage two expansion. 

Stage two is now being guided by a further strategic analysis and review which was completed in 
June 2011 . Stage two aims to: 

• drive revenue growth through diversification and financial accountability; 
• build a structure to accommodate future growth- Pillars of Business; 
• stabilize traditional fundraising ; and 
• focus on building commercial business. The first phase of this has been completed with the 

successful operational transfer of the hospital TV system to the Foundation. 

Stage three is anticipated to witness growth by stable commercial and fund raising income. 
In line with our success, the Foundation will continue to increase its financial and other support for the 
hospital to assist it with a variety of initiatives. 
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5. Financial Performance 

5.1 Historical 

The following summarises the historical performance of RBWH Foundation as extracted from the 
audited financial statements: 

Actual2012 Actual2011 Actual2010 Actual2009 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Revenue 6,882 5,301 4,692, 3,963 
Operating Result 3,428 1,808 1,561 900 
Net assets 13,152 10,067 8,101 6,185 

5.2 2012 

We have achieved a record income of $6.8m (a 29.9% increase on prior year}. This is an excellent 
result against the backdrop of the European debt crisis, general uncertainty in capital markets and a 
changing demographic of our donor base. These funds have been apportioned as 19.6% to mission 
(clinical and medical research activities of RBWH}, 49.8% to balance sheet (with the aim of ensuring a 
strong and viable Foundation for the future and ensuring sufficient capital is available for expansion 
and investment activities} and the remainder to operational costs. The total operational costs are 
covered by revenue from our commercial and investment activities. 

The Foundation manages a variety of special purpose funds which are earmarked to support 
numerous medical research projects and other initiatives. There is a large flow through of these funds 
as money is used for its intended purposes and replaced by further fundraising. 

6. Key Achievements 

• We have continued to support our mission of raising funds to support RBWH to further medical 
research and provide optimal health care and services. 

• Record revenue of $6.8m (a 29.9% increase on prior year and 73.7% increase since 2009}. 

• A record equity position of $13.1 m (a 30.6% increase on prior year and 112.6% increase since 
2009}. This will allow the Foundation to comfortably fund its planned expansion of commercial 
activities (see our strategic goals}. 

• These results have placed the Foundation is a very strong financial position. They are a step 
closer to ensuring the Foundation is able to self-fund through its balance sheet and 
investments. 

• The Foundation's total overheads are a very acceptable 30.6% of gross revenue. These are 
totally covered by income from the Foundation's commercial and investment activities. 

• The Foundation has been restructured to reflect the four Pillars of Business- Commercial, 
Business Development, Marketing and Finance. This has resulted in greater autonomy and 
accountability of all team members. 

• Commercial operations have expanded to include, car parking, hospital televisions and some 
retail. 
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• A strategy map has been developed for Board reporting. 

• Strategic and Operational Plan and Budget cycle developed and approved. 

• Foundation repositioned as the main fundraising body for the whole Hospital, not just clinical 
research. 

• Foundation's brand and messaging developed in support of the above objective. 

• Close working relationships developed with Hospital executive with greater support from wider 
hospital community. 

• Accounting and reporting systems redesigned to achieve streamlined and segmented monthly 
reporting which clearly details the undirected and directed components of the Foundation's 
business. 

• Governance at all levels has been improved. 

• Staff provided with educational support in order to assist with their career development. 

7. Success Principles 

The Foundation's continuing success and ability to support RBWH is based on two simple principles: 

7.1 The Team 

We recognise that our staff and volunteers are our most valued asset and we have created a work 
environment that brings out the best in each of us, where we: 

• believe in ourselves, each other, our services and our organisation; 
• respect and serve each other and internal and external stakeholders equally; 
• all own our actions, promises and professional behaviours; 
• value innovation and creativity as it helps to reinvent ourselves and our business; 
• model best practice and ethical behaviour in business, management and governance; 
• concentrate on our strengths rather than our weaknesses; and 
• create a flexible work environment where everyone enjoys coming to work. 

7.2 Our Donors and Stakeholders 

We practice a simple philosophy that at every interaction we should aim to delight the 
donor/stakeholder. We recognise that professional friendly relationship management is the 
cornerstone of our business. Our experience is that if we do this well, our business grows by word of 
mouth. 

Thank you to our many donors and stakeholders for your generous support and friendship. 
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8. Governance and Internal Control 

8.1 Pillars of Business 
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8.2 Our Patron 

RBWH Foundation is honoured to have Her Excellency, Ms Penelope Wensley AC, Governor of 
Queensland, as our patron. 

We thank her for her endorsement and ongoing support. 

8.3 Our Board 

Name 

Warwick Parer 
Hamish JL Ooley 
Lawrie W Powell 
Jenniwaty Luhur 
Peter Fardoulys 
John George 
Bruce Humphrys 
Scott McMullen 
Laura Perkins 
Cass George 

•• M •• 
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Term of Appointment 

7 April2015 
7 April2013 
7 April2013 
7 April2013 
7 April2013 
7 April2015 
7 April2013 
7 April2015 
7 April2015 
7 Apri12015 

Number of Meetings 
Attended out of six. 
6 
5 
2 
3 
3 
3 
5 
3 
5 
5 



Board Profiles 

The Hon Warwick Parer AM, scomm (Melb), FAIMM 

Chair 
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The Hon Warwick Parer AM first became a member of the Australian Senate in 1985, and from March 
1996 to October 1998 he was Minister for Resources and Energy. He retired from the Senate in 
2000. Mr Parer has since held the position of Chair of the Coalition of Australian Governments 
Independent Energy Review Panel and was a member of the Governing Council of the Old 
Parliament House (Qid). He has also served as President of the Queensland Liberal Party from 2006 
until February 2008. In 2012, he was appointed as Chair of Stanwell Corporation, the largest energy 
provider in Queensland. 

Hamish J L Ooley, BSc, BCom, CA. FFin 

Deputy Chair 

Hamish is a Partner of KPMG and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia, 
focusing on providing audit and advisory services to private and family businesses through the KPMG 
Private Enterprise practice based in Brisbane. Prior to joining KPMG, Hamish attained a Bachelor of 
Commerce and a Bachelor of Science at University of Queensland, which led to his interest and 
support for medical research. Hamish has provided support and pro-bono advisory services to Boards 
of other not-for-profit organisations through community initiatives such as the Australia Business Arts 
Foundation (AbaF). In addition to his role as Deputy Chairman of the Board, Hamish chairs 
the RBWH Foundation's Finance and Risk Committee. 

Professor Lawrie W Powell AC, FTSE, MD, PhD, DUnlv (Griff), FRACP, FRCP (Lond), FRCPT 

Professor Powell originally undertook his postgraduate training at the then Royal Brisbane Hospital 
before heading overseas to undertake further study and various positions at hospitals in London, 
America and Denmark. Back in Australia, he was awarded a personal Chair by the University of 
Queensland in 1978 and then, in collaboration with Professor June Halliday and Professor Graham 
Cooksley, he established an internationally recognised liver research group. In 1990, Professor 
Powell was appointed Director of the Queensland Institute of Medical Research (QIMR) where, 
amongst other achievements, he was instrumental in the successful development and planning of the 
$64 million Cancer Research Centre. Professor Powell has received numerous national and 
international awards in recognition of his research contributions and has held many prestigious 
positions including President of the International Association for the Study of Liver ( 1986 to 
1988). Professor Powell is currently Director of Research at RBWH, honorary Senior Principal 
Research Fellow of the QIMR and Professor Emeritus at The University of Queensland. 

Jenniwaty luhur OAM, Assoc Dip (Music) 

Ms Jenniwaty Luhur is a Director of Maxim us International Pty Ltd. She is also President of the 
Buddha's Light International Association of Queensland. Jenniwaty was awarded 'Volunteer of the 
Year' in 2002 by the then Royal Brisbane Hospital and Royal Women's Hospital Health Service 
District, in recognition of her contribution to the hospitals and health district through raising funds for 
medical research. 

Hon Prof Peter Fardoulys AM, LFAIB, JP, Dip Mech& Eiec Eng, Chartered Builder 
(Hon Prof Building & Construction Central Queensland University) 

Peter has been the Managing Director of Peter Fardoulys Constructions since 1976. He was also a 
board member of Opera Queensland ( 1981 to present) and the Creche & Kindergarten Association of 
Queensland ( 1967 to present). He is a past National President of the Australian Institute of 
Building. In 2005, Peter was appointed Member of the Order of Australia (AM) for services to the 
building industry and to the community through arts, medical, children's and church organisations. In 
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1977 he was awarded the Queen Elizabeth Silver Jubilee Medal and in 2001 he was awarded the 
Centenary Medal, both were in recognition for Peter's services to the building industry and to 
community groups. He has been a national councillor to his institute since 1978. 

John J George 

John George has owned and operated a number of retail and wholesale businesses in the Australian 
fresh food sector since 1980 but is best known for his role as Managing Director and co-founder of 
Australia's largest supplier and manufacturer of fresh chilled foods, Mrs Crocket's. Since the mid 
1990s, John and his brothers have been involved in expanding the family property investment, 
management and development business which is known as The George Group. John has also served 
as director and then Chairman for the Board of the Centre for Food Technology and also on the Board 
of the Queensland Institute of Technology as well as various other educational advisory positions. 

Bruce Humphrys 

Bruce Humphrys is the Managing Partner of Brisbane-based law firm Hopgood Ganim 
Lawyers. Bruce began his legal career with the firm in 1979 and has been the Managing Partner 
since 2001 , responsible for leading the firm's 26 partners and approximately 180 employees. Under 
Bruce's leadership, HopgoodGanim has experienced significant growth to become one of 
Queensland's largest independent law firms and, as consistently recognised by independent 
adjudicators, one of Australia's most successful legal practices. Before his current role, Bruce was 
one of the firm's lead partners within the commercial property group. During his career as a property 
lawyer, he was involved in many of South-East Queensland's larger property development projects. 

Scott McMullen, BA, BSOCWK, Grad Cert HM, MAASW 

Scott McMullen has a clinical background as a social worker and initially worked in forensic psychiatry 
at the Park Centre for Mental Health. He then managed the Rehabilitation Service as a member of 
the hospital executive and was an active driver of the hospital's redevelopment. Following this , Scott 
worked in Corporate Office for Queensland Health which led to a four month role in Bunda berg as 
part of the Queensland Health Response Team. Scott then returned to Brisbane where he took up 
the role of Team Leader Mental Health, Central Area Health Service and for two years following that 
was the Deputy Director, Clinical Governance, Central Area Health Service. Following Queensland 
Health's restructure in 2008, Scott took up the acting role as Director Allied Health at RBWH and in 
2009 moved into the permanent position of Executive Director of Corporate Services at RBWH. Scott 
has also held a number of board positions for Queensland University Rugby Club, Drug Arm 
Queensland and the Nyunda Park Cooperative. Additionally, he held the executive position of Vice 
President of the Mental Health Association of Queensland. Scott is dedicated to improving the patient 
care experience through innovation via research. 

Laura Perkins 

Laura Perkins was born and educated in the United States, obtaining a Bachelor of Business degree 
from California State University. Since then she has worked as a financial analyst and training 
specialist and has also owned several businesses. 

Cass George 

Cass George had a career in Early Childhood education and is a speech and drama teacher. Cass is 
also on the Australian Youth Orchestra National Advisory Council. 
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CEO Profile 

Peter Treseder AM, OAM, KSJ, JP, DipFm. GradCertBus (Philanthropy & Npst), EMFIA, FAICD, FAIM, CFRE 

Peter joined RBWH Foundation as CEO in July 2009. Peter gained experience in fundraising for the 
hospital sector through his six year role as Executive Director of The Millennium Foundation Ltd 
(TMF), which is the fund raising arm of Westmead Hospital and Westmead Millennium Institute. 
Peter's responsibilities included strategic direction and leadership of the team. Prior to his 
appointment with TMF, Peter worked in commercial/retail banking for 22 years with a focus on credit 
quality, corporate reconstructions and corporate affairs. 

8.4 Our Committees 

The Board and management of RBWH Foundation are extremely grateful to the many people who 
give generously of their time, knowledge, resources, advice, contacts and energy to not only assist in 
raising funds for RBWH but to ensure the Foundation continues to operate efficiently and invest 
prudently in projects that will provide the most benefit to the health and wellbeing of our patients. 

We are truly indebted to you for your support and generosity. 

Finance & Risk Committee 

The purpose of the Finance and Risk Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight 
responsibilities for the financial reporting process, the system of internal control, the Foundation's 
investment strategy, the audit process, and the Foundation's process for monitoring compliance with 
laws and regulations and the code of conduct. 

Committee members include: 

• Hamish Ooley (Chair), sse, BCom, CA, FFin 

• John George 
• John McFarlane 

Research Advisory Committee 

The purpose of the Research Advisory Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight 
responsibilities for the administration of funding health science research at the Hospital. 

Committee members include: 

• Professor Mervyn Eadie AO, MD, PhD (Chair) 
Professor Emeritus UQ. 
Chair, QH Central Human Research Ethics Committee 

• Professor Ron Dickinson sse Hans, PhD 

Professorial Research Fellow 
Director, Centre for Studies in Drug Disposition, UQ 

• Professor Lawrie Powell, AC, FTSE, MD, PhD, DUniv (Griff), FRACP. FRCP (Land), FRCPT 

Director of Research, RBWH 
• Adjunct Assoc. Professor Lesley Fleming OAM 

Executive Director Nursing, RBWH 
• Professor Murray Mitchell, DPhil, DSc, FRSNZ 

Director, UQ Centre for Clinical Research 



• Professor Denis Moss sse. PhD 

Head, Epstein-Barr Virus Biology Lab, QIMR 
• Professor Robert Tindle PhD 

Professor Emeritus UQ 
Director (Retired) Sir Albert Sakzewski Virus Research Centre, RCH and 
Clinical Medical Virology Centre, UQ 

• Dr Jacobus Ungerer, MBChB, MMed (chem pat), MBL, FRCPA 

A/Director Chemical Pathology, Pathology Queensland 
• Dr Jan Wilkey, MBBS BSc FRCPA FAFPHM. 

Retired, formerly Medical Superintendent, RBH. 
• Professor Glenn Gardner RN, PhD, FRCNA 

Professor of Clinical Nursing 
Director RBWH I QUT Centre for Clinical Nursing 

• Dr Peter Roeser MD, FRACP, FRCPA 

Retired Physician, UQ Department of Medicine 
• Dr Roger Allison MBBS. D Obst, MRCP, FRCR, FRACR, FAChPM 

Executive Director, Cancer Care Services, RBWH 
• A/Prof Gerard Byrne BSc (Med) MBBS (Hons) PhD FRANZCP 

Head, Academic Discipline of Psychiatry, UQ 
• Ms Judith Catherwood BComm, BSc(Hons) Dietetics, PG Cert Strategic Workforce Planning 

Executive Director Allied Health, RBWH 

Royal Doodle Do Committee 
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The purpose of the Royal Doodle Do Committee is to organise the annual Royal Doodle Do Dinner. 

Committee members include: 

• Nicole Hutchinson (Chair) 
• Leeanne O'Grady Woods 

Butterfly Ball Committee 

The purpose of the Butterfly Ball Committee is to organise the annual Butterfly Ball. 

Committee members include: 

• Penny Williams (Chair) 

• Jenniwaty Luhur 

• Jenny Gaskell 

• Kaley Butten 
• Lyna Chen 

• Nancy Liu 

• Natja Gougoulas 

• Ralph Smith 

• Prof. Paul Colditz 

• Eddie Yuen 
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Right Royal Affair Committee 

The purpose of the Right Royal Affair Committee is to organise the annual Right Royal Affair Black tie 
dinner. 

Committee members include: 

• Raewyn Bailey (Chair), RB Recruitment 
• Lisa Atallah, Yellow Cabs 
• Bianca Baron, Mercedes-Benz Brisbane 
• Terry O'Reilly, Superior Coal 
• Cass George, RBWH Foundation Board 
• Laura Perkins, RBWH Foundation Board 

8.5 Our People 

RBWH Foundation has a small but dedicated team of people who believe in Royal Brisbane & 
Women's Hospital and are committed to ensuring the hospital is able to provide the best care possible 
to its patients, ensuring the best outcomes for them and their families. Our staff work tirelessly to 
raise funds for research, equipment and other services. Staff are regularly supported in their efforts 
by their own family and friends, and to them we also say thank you. 

Our team includes: 

Peter Treseder AM, OAM, KSJ, JP, DipFm, GradCertBus (Philanthropy & Npst), EMFIA, FAlCO, FAIM, CFRE 

CEO 

Marketing, Communication and Events 

Karen Gallagher BA, MFIA 

Marketing, Events & Communications Manager 

Rita Grice 
Fund raising & Admin Officer 

Polly Brown BBus (Communications) 

Marketing & Communications Officer (part-time) 

Relationships and Donor Development 

Ari Panagiotou BComm 

Manager of Relationships and Donor Development 

Rachell Buckley 
Relationship and Business Development Manager 

Ross Birkett 
Planned Giving Manager 

Cathy Yang BA, MPhil 

Business Development Manager 

Jacqui Kiewiet 
Fund raising & Development Assistant (as required) 



Commercial 

Neal Stephen BA. mARMS 

Commercial Operations Manager 

Diana Christie 
Commercial Officer - TVs 

Finance 

Julie Wright CA (NZ) 

Financial Controller 

Cathy Johnstone 
Financial Assistant (part-time) 

8.7 Our volunteers 
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There are many individuals who volunteer their time and energy to help RBWH Foundation staff at our 
various events throughout the year, and there are volunteers who regularly report for duty in the 
Foundation's shop at the hospital. We would like to say a particular thank you to those volunteers 
who return time and again to assist us whenever they can. These include: 

Leanne Barron 
Jeanette Day 
Anne Gallagher 
Musitapa Kamalijiang 
Lesley Waugh 

9. Mission Support 

9.1 Research 

RBWH Foundation's primary method of distributing funds raised for clinical research conducted at the 
hospital is through its annual Research Grant Awards program. 

Grant submissions are received from across the hospital campus for a diverse range of proposed 
research projects. Each of these submissions is reviewed by the RBWH Research Advisory 
Committee which then awards the grants based on merit. The grants are designed to enable projects 
to get off the ground and establish a basis from which the researchers can apply for more substantial 
grants from larger external bodies. The grants include Research Initiative Grants, Nursing and Allied 
Health Research Grants and Patricia Dukes Fellowship Grants. 

RBWH Foundation also provides funding to a number of research centres based at RBWH for 
ongoing projects. Some examples of this ongoing research funding include: 

• Burns, Trauma & Critical Care Research Centre- RBWH Foundation has negotiated a three 
year sponsorship deal for this Centre with Brisbane-based construction company Epoca. This 
sponsorship will enable the centre to continue its research work in areas such as the 
application of antibiotic therapy in critically ill patients and improving the psychological health 
of burns patients. 
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• Neurology Research Centre - RBWH Foundation provides ongoing funding for motor neurone 
disease (MND) research. The researchers in this area are focussed on developing reliable 
markers for the disease's progression with the hope these developments can then be used in 
international clinical treatment trials. The centre was also just one of four hospitals in Australia 
to participate in the recent EMPOWER trial for the effectiveness of a drug called 
dexpramipexole. 

• Perinatal Research Centre- RBWH Foundation has continued to raise funds in 2011/2012 for 
the centre's five year Brain Research Advances In Newborns (BRAIN) Project. The project is 
now in its fourth year and seeks to better understand and detect brain injuries in new-borns 
while determining new methodologies for treating these injuries 

9.2 Other activities 

Throughout 2011/2012 financial year, RBWH Foundation has raised money and provided funding for 
a number of items and activities at the hospital that are not necessarily research related. A sample of 
these activities include: 

• Continuation of funding for the Prevent Alcohol and Risk-related Trauma in Youth (P.A.R.T.Y.) 
program- a program designed to educate high school students on the injury-producing risks 
related to alcohol and drug usage. RBWH Foundation obtained sponsorship from RACQ for 
this program in 2011/2012. 

• Continuation of funding for the Royal Milk Bank -a facility designed to provide clinically 
screened and pasteurised human donor breast milk to premature babies whose mothers are 
unable to produce their own. Construction on the Milk Bank began in late 2011/2012 and 
necessary equipment was ordered. The Milk Bank is due to open in 2012/2013. 

• Purchase of a Quickie Iris wheelchair for the hospital's Neurology Department thanks to a 
generous donation from Brisbane law firm Thynne & Macartney. 

• Purchase of a Continuous Auto Transfusion System (C.A.T.S.) Cell Saver machine for 
Maternity Services thanks to a generous donation from a Toowoomba-based community 
group known as Friends of Royal Brisbane and Women's Hospital. 

• Purchase of a flat-screen television and DVD player for the Neonatal Unit's expressing room 
thanks to a generous donation from Royal Mum Angela Perry. 

• Purchase of modified bras for breast cancer patients post-mastectomy. 
• Funding of medical staff to attend various international conferences and training programs. 
• Sponsorship of the annual RBWH Health Care Symposium and associated awards. 
•· The provision of clothes for the Hospital's sexual assault unit. 

10. Funding of Mission 

The core means by which this has been achieved is via relationship fundraising, commercial and 
investing activities: 

• Developing long term relationships with supporters. 
• Growth and diversification of the Foundation's community of supporters. 
• Ensuring the means of communicating with the Foundation's community- excellence in 

communication and data base management are the key. 
• Using all appropriate fundraising tools, techniques and resources, including events, direct 

mail, bequest programs, and community engagement programs, amongst other activities. 
• A dominant aspect of the fundraising plan is that it should be a lifelong process of building 

support, based on long term, positive and mutually beneficial relationships between donors, 
prospective donors, the community at large and the Foundation. If done well, a very personal .. ~ .. 
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relationship will be created between donors and the Foundation, one in which basic values 
and purposes are reinforced over time and in which regular communication and stewardship 
are critical ingredients. 

• The establishment of financially viable commercial and investment activities. 

The success of this plan has been the availability of funds and resources to support the hospital, its 
staff and patients in areas not otherwise funded by Queensland Health. 

11. External Scrutiny 

There have been no external agency reviews or audits conducted on the Foundation during the 
reporting period, apart from the financial audit which is disclosed in the attached statutory accounts 
for 2012. 

12. Machinery of government changes 

There has been no machinery of government changes which have affected the Foundation during the 
reporting period. 

As at 1 July 2012, the Hospital and Health Boards Act 2011 provides local control of hospitals and 
health services via the Hospital and Health Boards that have been established. In accordance with a 
recent amendment to the Hospital Foundations Act 1982, the Chairperson or that person's nominee of 
the local Hospital and Health Board is now a member of the Foundation's Board. 

13. Review of proposed forward operations 

Plans and priorities are reviewed continuously by the Board and management team to ensure that 
these remain consistent to the strategic plan. 

14. Workforce planning, attraction and retention 

We have created a flexible working environment and are in the process of improving the work space. 
Workforce planning is continuously reviewed depending upon the daily needs of the Foundation. 
Much use is made of volunteer assistance on our committees and in relation to organisation of our 
various fund raising initiatives. We also seek the support of a professional recruitment agency when 
hiring permanent employees to the team. This assists us in attracting the brightest and best and 
ensures that we maintain a professional approach to every aspect of our operations. 

15. Information systems and record keeping 

The Foundation complies with the provisions of the Public Records Act 2002, Information Standard 
40: Record keeping and Information Standard 31 : Retention and Disposal of Public Records. 

16. Consultancies 

No consultancies were used by the Foundation during the reporting period. 
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Charter for 3rowth- Royal Brisbar.e and V\!cmen's Hospital Foundation: 2011/12-2013/14 

MISSION 

Supporting Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital (the Hospital) to further medical research and provide optimal health care and services. 
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stakeholders, increasing number of through greater linkages with Finance and Risk 
particularly the commercial opportunities. the Hospital. Committee. 
Foundation's staff. • We will develop a diverse .- VJe will conUnue to develop 

portfolio of revenue streams. the Royal Mum's initiative and 
• We will focus our launch the Royal Family. 

fundralsing/commercial 
efforts on the achievement of 
undirected monies which 
ensure the Foundation's 
liquidity. 

• We will explone the strategic 
use of online technologies to 
keep_p~ with chanae. 

PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

. New Pillars of Business • Tangible support provided by • Annual undirected • Active donor data bases • Clean financial audit reports • Proportion of operating 
adopted. Hospital Executive. fundraislng Income Increased Increased from 5,000 to received. costs to revenue is less . Budget meets monthly • All communications by the to $3m by 2013/14. 15,000 by 2013/14. • All Finance and Risk than peer Foundations as 
targets. Foundation and Hospital • Donations to Hospital Committee meetings have a measured from publicly 

incorporate Foundation increased by 50% by defined purpose and agenda. available annual reports. 
messages and position 2013/14. • Effective working relationship 
statement between the Board and 

• 50% increased number of senior Foundation staff. 
Foundation and Hospital staff 
who participate In Foundation 
a~~ities. 

FINANCIAL OBJECTIVE 

7. To create an environment 
where employees' and 
volunteers' contributions are 
valued, recognised and 
rewarded. 

• We will ensure that the 
needs and contributions of 
employees and volunteers 
receive high level. attention. 

.. 
. 

• Top quartile performance in 
annual staff satisfaction 
survey . 

' 

How we will fund 1 Create a long- term, sustainable fundraising revenue stream. 
ourgoals · 1 

How we work 
together 

· GUIDING VALUES 

COMMITMENT RESPECT RESPONSIBILITY INNOVATION PROFESSIONALISM 
We believe in ourselves, each other, our We respect and serve each other and We all own our actions, promises and We value innovation and creativity as It helps We model best practice and ethical behaviour 
services and our organisation. lntemal and extemal stakeholders professional behaviours. to reinvent ourselves and our business. in business, management and governance. 

equallv. 
CONTRIBUTION TO GOVERNMENT OBJECTIVES FOR THE COMMUNITY 

The Foundation supports the Queensland Govemment's "Getting Queensland back on track• objectives for the community. Particularly, revitallsation of front line health services for families. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation is established by Order in Council under the Hospital Foundations Act 1982 and is a 
statutory body within the meaning given in the Financial Accountabflity Act 2009. 

To the best of the knowledge of the Board of Royal Brisbane & Women's Foundation, during the course of the last financial year there 
have been no breaches by the Foundation of the Hospital Foundations Act 1982 (the Act). 

The principal place of business of Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation is: 
Block20 
Royal Brisbane and Women's Hospital 
Butterfield Street 
Hers ton 
QLD4006 

A description of the nature of the Foundation's operations and its principal activities is included in the notes to the financial statements. 

For information in relation to the Foundation's financial statements, please call (07) 3636-7588, email info@rbwhfoundation.com.au or 
visit the Foundation's Internet site www.rbwhfoundation.com.au. 

Amounts shown in these financial statements may not add to the correct sub-totals or totals due to rounding. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the year ended 30 June 2012 

Notes 2012 2011 
$ $ 

Income from Continuing Operations 

Fundraising Activities, Special Events, Donations and Bequests 2 3,338,566 2,342,609 

Merchandising Activities 67,366 47,792 

Research Grants and Clinical Trials 3 690,290 544,612 

Financial Income 4 569,602 526,935 

Carpark Rental Income 1,339,926 1,265,864 

Realised (Loss) I Gain on Sale of Available-for-Sale Financial Assets (5,511) 71.237 

Hospital TV Operations Income 635,026 452,589 

Other Revenue 5 206,837 101,416 

Total Income from Continuing Operations 6,882,324 5,373,054 

Expenses from Continuing Operations 

Employee Expenses 6&22 1,267,537 1,004,748 

Event Expenses 486,697 444,754 

Fundraising Expenses 113,107 142,169 

Research Administration and Clinical Trials 7 776,161 443,463 

Merchandising Expenses 54,574 71,227 

Research Grants 302,419 1,003,274 

Depreciation 8 16,301 17,370 

Finance I Borrowing Costs 4 41,447 41,756 

Hospital TV Operations Expenses 266,666 135,938 

other Expenses 9 126,496 188,748 

Total Expenses from Continuing Operations 3,453,607 3,493,467 

Surplus from Continuing Operations 3,428,717 1,879,587 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Net (Decrease) /Increase in Fair Value of Available-For-Sale Financial Assets (343,074) 86,665 

Total Other Comprehensive (Loss} /Income (343,074) 86,665 

Total Comprehensive Income 3,085,643 1,966,252 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Statement of Financial Position 
as at 30 June 2012 

Notes Restated Restated 
30 June 30 June 1 July 

2012 2011 2010 

$ $ $ 
Current Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 5,596,018 3,974,760 3,683,838 

Trade and Other Receivables 11 1,321,433 1,223,305 1,035,035 

Inventories 12 26,209 1,310 50,093 

Financial Assets 13 2,835,408 2,181,955 559,518 

Other Current Assets 515 8,976 6,700 

Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale 298,750 

Total Current Assets 9,779,583 7,390,306 5,633,934 

Non Current Assets 
Financial Assets 13 4,007,587 3,810,285 3,553,941 

Property, Plant and Equipment 14 55,295 24,412 33,963 

Total Non Current Assets 4,062,882 3,834,697 3,587,904 

Total Assets 13,842,465 11,225,003 9,221,838 

Current Liabilities 
Trade and Other Payables 15 464,252 1,000,126 1,034,934 

Accrued Employee Benefits 16 177,997 117,193 64,608 

Other Current Liabilities 17 47,498 40,608 11,437 

Total Current Liabilities 689,747 1,157,927 1,110,979 

Non Current Liabilities 
Accrued Employee Benefits 10,034 

Total Non Current Liabilities 10,034 

Total Liabilities 689,747 1,157,927 1,121,013 

Net Assets 13,152,718 10,067,076 8,100,825 

Equity 
Accumulated Surplus 13,139,255 9,629,592 7,750,006 

Fair Value Reserve 13,463 437,484 350,819 

Total Equity 13,152,718 10,067,076 8,100,825 

The accompanying nates form part of these financial statements. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 30 June 2012 

Accumulated Fair Value 
Surplus Reserve TOTAL 

$ $ $ 

Balance as at 1 July 201 0 7,750,006 350,819 8,100,825 
Total Comprehensive Income: 
Surplus from Continuing Operations 1,879,586 1,879,586 

Total Other Comprehensive Income 

Increase in Fair Value of Available-For-Sale Financial Assets 86,665 86,665 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 1,879,586 86,665 1,966,251 

Balance as at 30 June 2011 D,B2UD::Z ~!7'.~a ~D.DU7,D7'U 

Balance as at 1 July 2011 9,629,592 437,484 10,067,076 
Reclassification in Respect of Prior Year Losses on Sale of 
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets 80,946 (80,946) 

Restated Balance as at 1 July 2011 9,71 0,538 356,538 10,067,076 

Total Comprehensive Income: 
Surplus from Continuing Operations 3,428,717 3,428,717 

Total Other Comprehensive Income 

Decrease in Fair Value of Available-For-Sale (343,075) (343,075) 
Financial Assets 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 3,428,717 (343,075) 3,085,642 

Balance as at 30 June 2012 ~ !, ~ !§,2!1!1 ~!.:!U! ~!. ~!12,7~11 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 30 June 2012 

Restated 
Notes 2012 2011 

s $ 
Cash flows from Operating Activities 
Inflows: 
Fundraising Activities, Special Events, Donations and Bequests 3,384,839 2,552,471 
Merchandising Activites 87,829 96,573 
Research Grants and Clinical Trials 691,931 606,794 
Car Park Rental Income 1,271,333 1,111,986 
Hospital TV Operations Income 601,607 449,262 
GST Collected From Customers 317,310 249,958 
Other Income 196,178 128,301 

Outflows: 
Employee Expenses (1,200,705) (1 '151 ,214) 
Event Expenses (444,632) (434,631) 
Fundraising Expenses (113,107) (142, 169) 
Research Administration and Clinical Trials (794,968) (489.442) 
Merchandising Expenses (82,593) (68, 111) 
Research Grants (800,881) (827,927) 
Hospital TV Operations (266,666) (135,938) 
GST Paid to Suppliers (192,827) (142,886) 
GST Remitted to ATO (107,350) (91,694) 
Other Expenses (177,238) (133,024l 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 18 2,370,060 1,578,309 

Cash flows from Investing Activities 
Inflows: 
Interest Income 365,130 338,006 
Dividend Income 66,590 35,270 
Distribution Income 28,812 17,875 
Proceeds from Sales of Available-For-Sale Financial Assets 2,395,792 330,000 

Outflows: 
Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment 14 (47, 183) (20,750) 
Payments for Available-For-Sale Financial Assets (2,883,392) (330,000) 
Payments for Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets (653,452) (2,171 ,023) 
Management Fees (21,097) (19,709) 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (748,801) (1,820,331! 

Net Cash Provided by I (Used in) Financing Activities 

Net Increase I (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,621,259 (242,022) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginining of Financial Year 3,974,760 4,216,782 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Financial Year 10 5,596,019 3,974,760 

The accompanying notes fonn part of these financial statements. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

Objectives and Principal Activities of the Foundation 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Note 2: Fundraising Activities, Special Events, Donations and Bequests 

Note 3: Research Grants and Clinical Trials 

Note 4: Financial Income and Finance Costs 

Note 5: Other Revenue 

Note 6: Employee Expenses 

Note 7: Research Administration and Clinical Trials 

Note 8: Depreciation and Amortisation 

Note 9: Other Expenses 

Note 10: cash and cash Equivalents 

Note 11: Trade and Other Receivables 

Note 12: Inventories 

Note 13: Financial Assets 

Note 14: Property, Plant and Equipment 

Note 15: Trade and Other Payables 

Note 16: Accrued Employee Benefits 

Note 17: Other Current Liabilities 

Note 18: Reconciliation of Operating Surplus to Net Cash from Operating Activities 

Note 19: Commitments for Expenditure 

Note 20: Contingencies 

Note 21: Financial Instruments 

Note 22: Key Executive Management Personnel and Remuneration 

Note 23: Correction of Error 
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Royal Brisbane & Women•s Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

Objectives and Principal Activities of the Foundation 

The objective of Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation is to raise money to help fund clinical research, purchase vital pieces 
of equipment and enable key health professionals to attend additional training programs, conferences and seminars. 

The Foundation is funded for the services it delivers through donations, sponsorship and support from the broader community, including 
individuals, businesses, community groups and commercial activities. 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Statement of Compliance 

Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation has prepared these financial statements in compliance with section 42 of the Financial 
and Performance Management Standard 2009. 

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements, and have been prepared on an accrual basis in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations. In addition, the financial statements comply with Treasury's Minimum Financial 
Reporting Requirements for the year ended 30 June 2012, and other authoritative pronouncements. 

With respect to compliance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
has applied those requirements applicable to not-for-profit entities, as Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation is a not-for-profit 
statutory body within the meaning given in the Financial Accountability Act 2009. 
Except where stated, the historical cost convention is used. 

(b) The Reporting Entity 

The financial statements include the value of all revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity of the Foundation. There are no 
controlled entities. 

(c) Fundraising Activities, Special Events, Donations and Bequests 

Revenue from fundraising activities, special events, donations and bequests are recognised as income when received. The amount and 
timing of receipts is dependent on a number offundraising activities including direct mail donations, personal and corporate donations 
and special events. 

Bequest income varies from year-to-year depending on the number and value of bequests received. 

(d) Research Grants and Clinical Trials 

Income from research grants administered by the Foundation that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue when they are 
received. The Foundation does not receive any reciprocal grants. 

Research grants payable are accounted for when grants are awarded and accepted. 

Income from clinical trials is recognised as income when services are rendered and I or contract milestones are completed. 

(e) Car Park Rental Income 

Car park rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the tenm of the lease. 

(f) Hospital TV Operations Income 

Hospital TV operations income is recognised when it is received. The amount and timing of receipts is dependent on the number of 
patients occupying beds, the reliability of the television at the bedside and the uptake of the service by the patients. 

(g) Financial Income 

Interest and dividend income is recognised on an accrual basis. 

(h) Merchandising Sales 

Income from sales of merchandise are recognised when received. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Cash Flows, cash assets include all cash and cheques 
receipted but not banked at 30 June as well as short term deposits at call with financial institutions that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash with an original maturity of three months or less. 

(j) Receivables 

Trade debtors are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed purchase/contract price. 
Settlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date. 

The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically with provision being made for impairment All known bad debts were written-off 
as at 30 June. 

Other debtors generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the Foundation and are recognised at their 
assessed values. Terms are a maximum of 30 days, no interest is charged and no security is obtained. 

(k) Inventories 

Inventories held for sale are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Cost is based on the first-in first-out principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in 
bringing them to their existing location and condition. 

Net realisable value Is determined on the basis of the Foundation's normal selling pattern. Expenses associated with marketing, selling 
and distribution are deducted to determine net realisable value. 

(I) Acquisitions of Assets 

Actual cost is used for the initial recording of all non-current physical and intangible asset acquisitions. Cost is determined as the value 
given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including all other costs incurred in getting the assets ready for use. 
However, any training costs are expensed as incurred. 

(m) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Items of property, plant and equipment with a cost or other value equal to or in excess of the following thresholds are recognised for 
financial reporting purposes in the year of acquisition: 

Plant and Equipment $5,000 

Items with a lesser value are expensed in the year of acquisition. 

(n) Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis so as to allocate the net cost or revalued amount of each asset, 
Jess its estimated residual value, progressively over its estimated useful life to the Foundation. 

For each class of depreciable asset the following depreciation and amortisation rates are used: 

Class 
Plant and equipment: 

Furniture & fittings 
Computer equipment 
TV operations equipment 

(o) Impairment of Non-Current Assets 

Rate% 

20.00 
33.33 
20.00 

All non-current physical and Intangible assets are assessed for indicators of impairment on an annual basis. If an indicator of possible 
impairment exists, the department determines the assefs recoverable amount. Any amount by which the asset's carrying amount 
exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. 

The asset's recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost. 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued 
amount. When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation surplus of the 
relevant class to the extent available. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

(p) Impairment of Non-Current Assets (cont'd) 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its 
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income, unless 
the asset Is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the Impairment loss Is treated as a revaluation increase. 

(q) Prepayments 

Prepayments are recognised on a straight-line basis over the period covered by the invoice, from the date of purchase of goods or 
delivery of service. 

(r} Leases 

Operating lease payments are representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets and are expensed in the periods 
in which they are incurred. 

(s) Payables 

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the nominal amount i.e. agreed 
purchase/contract price, gross of applicable trade and other discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 
day terms. 

(t) Employee Benefits 

Employer superannuation contributions, annual leave and long service leave are regarded as employee benefits. 

Workers' compensation insurance is a consequence of employing employees, but is not counted in an employee's total remuneration 
package. They are not employee benefits and are recognised separately as employee related expenses. 

Wages, Salaries and Sick Leave 

Wages and salaries due but unpaid at reporting date are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at the current salary rates. 

For unpaid entiHements expected to be paid within 12 months, the liabilities are recognised at their undiscounted values. Entitlements 
not expected to be paid within 12 months are classified as non-current liabilities and recognised at their present value, calculated using 
yields on Fixed Rate Commonwealth Government bonds of similar maturity, after projecting the remuneration rates expected to apply at 
the time of likely settlement. 

Prior history indicates that on average, sick leave taken each reporting period is less than the entiUement accrued. 
This is expected to continue in future periods. Accordingly, it is unlikely that existing accumulated entitlements will be used by 
employees and no liability for unused sick leave entitlements is recognised. 

As sick leave is non-vesting, an expense is recognised for this leave as it is taken. 

Bonus Payments 

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus plans if the Foundation has a present legal or 
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated 
reliably. 

The maximum bonus an employee is entitled to is 5% of their total remuneration package. The bonus is only payable upon firstly 
meeting financial criteria as set by the Board of the Foundation and thereafter upon successfully achieving individual KPI's as set by the 
Chief Executive Officer on a year by year basis. 

Superannuation 

Employer superannuation contributions are expensed in the period in which they are paid or payable to a superannuation provider of the 
employee's choice. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

(t• Employee Benefits (cont'd) 

Key Executive Management Personnel and Remuneration 

Key executive management personnel and remuneration disclosures are made in accordance with section 5 of the Financial Reporting 
Requirements for Queensland Government Agencies issued by Queensland Treasury. Refer to note 22 for the disclosures on key 
executive management personnel and remuneration. 

Annual and Long Service Leave 

The liability for long service leave and annual leave which is not expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period in 
which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value 
of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the 
projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and 
periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national 
government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

(u) Provisions 

Provisions are recorded when the Foundation has a present obligation, either legal or constructive as a result of a past event. They are 
recognised at the amount expected at reporting date for which the obligation will be settled in a future period. Where the settlement of 
the obligation is expected after 12 or more months, the obligation is discounted to the present value using an appropriate discount rate. 

(v) Financing I borrowing costs 

Finance costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Finance costs include: 
• Management fees 

(w) Insurance 

The Foundation's non-current physical assets and other risks are insured through the Queensland Government Insurance Fund, 
premiums being paid on a risk assessment basis. In addition, the Foundation pays premiums to WorkCover Queensland in respect of its 
obligations for employee compensation. 

(x) Taxation 

The Foundation has been endorsed by the Commissioner of Taxation as an income tax exempt charity pursuant to Section 50-5 of the 
Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. The Foundation Is exempted from Fringe Benefits Tax under Section 57 a of the Fringe Benefit Tax 
Assessment Act 1986. Accordingly the Foundation is exempted from Commonwealth taxation with the exception of Goods and Services 
Tax (GST). GST is the only tax accounted for by Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation. GST credits receivable from, and 
GST payable to the ATO, are disclosed at note 11 & 15. 

(y} Issuance of Financial Statements 

The financial statements are authorised for issue by the board of Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation at the date of signing 
the Management Certificate. 

(z} Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

The preparation of financial statements necessarily requires the determ lnation and use of certain critical accounting estimates, 
assumptions, and management judgements that have the potential to cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year. Such estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant. 

Estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the following financial statement notes: 

Accrued Employee Benefits- note 16 
Contingencies - note 20 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

(z) Accounting Estimates and Judgements (cont'd) 

The Australian government passed its Clean Energy Act in November 2011 with a start date of 1 July 2012. The legislation will result in 
the introduction of a price on carbon emissions made by Australian businesses from 1 July 2012. 

The flexible market-based price phase of the carbon pricing mechanism will commence on 1 July 2015. It will be preceded by a three
year period during which the price of permits will be fixed at $23 per tonne or carbon dioxide equivalent in year one, $24.15 in year two 
and $25.40 in year three. 

Section 4.3.4 of Queensland Treasury's report on 'Carbon Price Impacts for Queensland' dated August 2011 indicates that, for non
residential construction activities, costs may increase by between 0.7 per cent and 0.8 per cent over the period 2012-13 to 2015-16. 

On this basis and other information available, the introduction of the carbon pricing mechanism is not expected to have a significant 
impact on the Foundation's critical accounting estimates, assumptions and management judgements. 

(aa) Rounding and Comparatives 

Amounts included in the financial statements are in Australian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest $1. 

Comparative information has been restated where necessary to be consistent with disclosures in the current reporting period. 

(ab) Financial Instruments 

Classification 

The Foundation classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and 
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which 
the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, in the case of 
assets classified as held-to-maturity, re-evaluates this designation at the end of each reporting date. 

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. 
A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are classified 
as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they are expected to 
be settled within 12 months; otherwise they are classified as non-current. 

(ii) Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 
They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting period which are 
classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are included in trade and other receivables (note 11) in the balance sheet. 

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments 
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the 
Foundation's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in non
current assets, except for those with maturities less than 12 months from the end of the reporting period, which are classified as current 
assets. 

The held-to-maturity financial assets are term deposits held with financial institutions with an original maturity date of greater than 90 
days. 

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets 
Available-for-sale financial assets, comprising principally marketable equity securities, are non-derivatives that are either designated In 
this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or 
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting period. Investments are designated as 
available-for-sale if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or determinable payments and management intends to hold them for the 
medium to long term. 

The Foundation's investment in equity securities and managed funds are classified as available-for-sale financial assets. These 
investments are managed by JBWere Pty Ltd and the performance of such is monitored by the Foundation's Risk and Audit Committee 
which meets at least bi-monthly. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

(ab) Financial Instruments (cont'd) 

Recognition and Derecognition 

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date- the date on which the group commits to purchase 
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have 
been transferred and the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. 

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in other comprehensive 
income are reclassified to profit and loss as gains and losses trqm investment securities. 

Measurement 

At initial recognition, the group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through 
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets 
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. 

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently canried at fair value. 
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are presented 
in profit or Joss within other income or other expenses in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss is recognised in profrt or Joss as part of revenue from continuing operations when the group's right to receive 
payments is established. Interest income from these financial assets is included in the net gains/(losses). 

Details on how the fair value of financial instruments is determined are disclosed In note 21. 

Impairment 

The Foundation assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there 
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a 'loss 
event') and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial 
assets that can be reliably estimated. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline 
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator that the assets are impaired. 

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost 
For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's 
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a 
loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment Joss is the current 
effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the group may measure impairment on the basis of an 
instrument's fair value using an observable market price. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating}, the reversal of the previously 
recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. 

Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in note 10). 

(ii) Assets classified as available-for-sale 
If there is objective evidence of impairment for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss- measured as the difference 
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or 
loss- is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. 

Impairment losses on equity instruments that were recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or toss in a subsequent 
period. 

If the fair value of a debt Instrument classified as available-for-sale Increases In a subsequent period and the increase can be objectively 
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or Joss, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or 
loss. 

The Foundation does not enter into derivatives or transactions for speculative purposes, nor for hedging. The Foundation does not enter 
into transactions for speculative purposes, nor for hedging. Apart from cash and cash equivalents, the Foundation holds no financial 
assets classified at fair value through profit or loss. 

All other disclosures relating to the measurement and financial risk management of financial instruments held by the Foundation are 
included in note 21. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

(ab) New and Revised Accounting Standards 

The Foundation did not voluntarily change any of its accounting policies during 2011-12. Australian accounting standard changes 
applicable for the first time for 2011-12 have had minimal effect on Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation financial 
statements, as explained below. 

AASB 2010-4 Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project [AASB 1, AASB 
7, AASB 101 & AASB 134 and Interpretation 13] became effective from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011. Given 
Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation's existing financial instruments, there was only a minor impact on the departmenfs 
financial instruments note (note 21 ), in relation to disclosures about credit risk. That note no longer needs to disclose amounts that best 
represent the maximum exposure to credit risk where the carrying amount of the instruments already reflects this. As this was the case 
with all the Foundation's receivables as at 30 June 2012 (and as at 30 June 2011), receivables are not included in the credit risk 
disclosure in this year's financial statements. 

As Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation held no collateral or other credit enhancements in respect of its financial 
instruments, and did not renegotiate the tenns of any financial assets, during the reporting periods presented in these financial 
statements, there were no other changes required to the department's financial instruments note arising from the amendments to AASB 
7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. 

AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures became effective from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 
2011. Given Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation's previous disclosure practices, AASB 1054 had minimal impact on the 
Foundation. One of the footnotes to note 9; Other Expenses, regarding audit fees, has been slightly amended to identify the 
Foundation's auditor and clarify the nature of the work perfonned by the auditor. 

AASB 2011-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project [AASB 1, AASB 5, 
AASB 101, AASB 107, AASB 108, AASB 121, AASB 128, AASB 132 & AASB 134 and Interpretations 2, 112 & 113] also became 
effective from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011. The only potential implication for Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital 
Foundation from this amending standard was the deletion from AAS B 1 01 Presentation of Financial Statements of the requirement for 
disclosure of commitments. However, Treasury Departmenfs Financial Reporting Requirements require continuation of commitments 
disclosures, so this deletion from AASB 101 has no impact on Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation's commitments note 
(note 19). 

The Foundation is not penn itted to early adopt a new or amended accounting standard ahead of the specified commencement date 
unless approval is obtained from the Treasury Department. Consequently, Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation has not 
applied any Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Foundation 
applies standards and interpretations in accordance with their respective commencement dates. 

At the date of authorisation of the financial report, significant impacts of new or amended Australian accounting standards with future 
commencement dates are as set out below. 

AASB 2011-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards- Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income [AASB 1, 5, 7, 
101, 112, 120, 121, 132, 133, 134, 1039 & 1049] applies as from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The only impact 
for Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation will be that, in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, items within the "Other 
Comprehensive Income" section will need to be presented in different sub-sections, according to whether or not they are subsequently 
re-classifiable to the operating result. Whether subsequent re-classification is possible depends on the requirements or criteria in the 
accounting standard/interpretation that relates to the item concerned. 

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement applies from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. AASB 13 sets out a new 
definition of "fair value", as well as new principles to be applied when detennining the fair value of assets and liabilities. The new 
requirements will apply to all of Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation's assets and liabilities (excluding leases) that are 
measured and/or disclosed at fair value or another measurement based on fair value. The potential impacts of AASB 13 relate to the fair 
value measurement methodologies used, and financial statement disclosures made in respect of, such assets and liabilities. 

AASB 13 will require an increased amount of infonnation to be disclosed in relation to fair value measurements for both assets and 
liabilities. To the extent that any fair value measurement for an asset or liability uses data that is not "observable" outside the 
department, the amount of infonnation to be disclosed will be relatively greater. 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 201 0) and AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 
9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and 
Interpretations 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127] become effective from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The main impacts 
of these standards on Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation are that they will change the requirements for the classification, 
measurement and disclosures associated with financial assets. Under the new requirements, financial assets will be more simply 
classified according to whether they are measured at amortised cost or fair value. Pursuant to AASB 9, financial assets can only be 
measured at amortised cost if two conditions are met. One of these conditions is that the asset must be held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows. The other condition is that the contractual tenns of the asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

(ab) New and Revised Accounting Standards (cont'd) 

Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation has commenced reviewing the measurement of its financial assets against the new 
AASB 9 classification and measurement requirements. However, as the classification of financial assets at the date of initial application 
of AASB 9 will depend on the facts and circumstances existing at that date, the Foundation's conclusions will not be confirmed until 
closer to that time. At this stage, and assuming no change In the types of transactions Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
enters Into, It is not expected that any of the Foundation's financial assets will meet the criteria in AASB 9 to be measured at amortised 
cost. Therefore, as from the 2013-14 financial statements, all of the Foundation's financial assets are expected to be required to be 
measured at fair value, and classified accordingly (instead of the measurement classifications presenUy used In notes 1(ab) and 21). 
The same classification will be used for net gains/losses recognised In the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of those 
financial assets. In the case of the Foundation's current receivables, as they are short-term in nature, the carrying amount is expected to 
be a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

Changed disclosure requirements will apply once AASB 9 becomes effective. A number of one-off disclosures will be required in the 
2013-14 financial statements to explain the impact of adopting AASB 9. Assuming no change in the types of financial instruments that 
Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation enters into, the most significant ongoing disclosure impacts are expected to relate to 
investments In equity fnstn.ments measured at fair value through comprehensive income. 

The following new and revised standards apply as from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 -
• AASB 1 0 Consolidated Financial Statements ; 
• AASB 2011 -7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint AmJngernents Standards 
[AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139,1023 & 1038 and Interpretations 5, 9, 16 & 17]. 
These standards cannot be applied by not-for-profit entities prior to their effective date, as the AASB is presently considering modifying 
them for application by not-for-profit entities in an Australian context. Any such modifications are likely to clarify how the IASB's 
principles should be applied by not-for-profit entities. Hence, Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation is not 
yet In a position to reliably determine the future implications of these new and revised standards for the Foundation's financial 
statements. 

AASB 1 0 redefines and clarifies the concept of control of another entity, which is the basis for determining which entities should be 
consolidated into an entity's financial statements. Therefore, subject to any not-for-profit modifications yet to be made to AASB 10, 
Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation will need to re-assess the nature of its relationships with other entities, Including 
entitles that aren't currently consolidated. 
AASB 11 deals with the concept of joint control, and sets out new principles for determining the type of joint arrangement that exists -
which, In turn, dictates the accounting treatment. The new categories of joint arrangements under AASB 11 are more aligned to the 
actual rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement. Subject to any not-for-profit modifiCations yet to be made to AASB 11, 
Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation will need to assess the nature of any arrangements with other entities to determine 
whether a joint arrangement exists in terms of AASB 11. 

AASB 12 contains a wide range of new disclosure requirements In respect of interests In other entities, whether those entities are 
controlled entities, associates, joint arrangements, or structured entities that aren't consolidated. The volume and nature of disclosures 
that Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation will be required to make as from its 2013-14 financial statements will depend on 
the department's eventual assessment of the implications of the new and revised standards listed above, particularly AASB 10, AASB 
11 and AASB 128. 

A revised version of AASB 119 Employee Benefits applies from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The revised 
AASB 119 is generally to be applied retrospectively. Given Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation's circumstances, the only 
Implications for the Foundation are that the revised standard clarifies the concept of ''termination benefrts", and the recognition criteria 
for liabilities for termination benefits wi II be different. If termination benefits meet the timeframe criterion for "short-term employee 
benefits", they will be measured according to the AASB 119 requirements for "short-term employee benefits". Otherwise, termination 
benefrts will need to be measured according to the AASB 119 requirements for "other long-tenn employee benefits". Under the revised 
standard, the recognition and measurement of employer obligations for "other long-term employee benefits" will need to be accounted 
for according to most of the requirements for defined benefit plans. 

The revised AASB 1191ncludes changed criteria for accounting for employee benefits as "short-term employee benefits". The revised 
AASB 119 also includes changed requirements for the measurement of employer liabilities/assets arimg from defined benefit plans, 
and the measurement and presentation of changes in such liabilities/assets. 

AASB 1053 App/icstfon of Tl&fS of Australian Accounting Standards applies as from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2013. 
AASB 1053 establishes a differential reporting framework for those entities that prepare general purpose financial statements, 
consisting of two tiers of reporting requirements- Australian Accounting Standards (commonly referred to as "tier 1 "), and Australian 
Accounting Standards- Reduced Disclosure Requirements (commonly referred to as "tier 2"). Tier 1 requirements comprise the full 
range of AASB recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements that are currently applicable to reporting entities in 
Australia. The only difference between the tier 1 and tier 2 requirements is that tier 2 requires fewer disclosures than tier 1. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

(ab) New and Revised Accounting Standards (cont'd) 

Details of which disclosures in standards and interpretations are not required under tier 2 reporting are set out in amending standards 
AASB 2010-2, AASB 2011-2, AASB 2011-6 and AASB 2011-11 (which also apply from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 
2013 ). However, Queensland Treasury Department's Financial Reporting Requirements effectively do not allow application of AASB 
2011-6 in respect of controlled entities, associates or interests in jointly controlled entities. 

Pursuant to AASB 1053, public sector entities like Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation may adopt tier 2 requirements for 
their general purpose financial statements. However, AASB 1 053 acknowledges the power of a regulator to require application of the 
tier 1 requirements. In the case of Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation, Treasury Department is the regulator. Queensland 
Treasury Department has advised that its policy decision is to require adoption of tier 1 reporting by all Queensland Government 
departments and statutory bodies that are consolidated into the whole-of-Government financial statements. Treasury's policy also 
prohibits the early adoption of the arrangements outlined in AASB 1053 and its accompanying amending standards. As Royal Brisbane 
& Women's Hosp~al Foundation is not consolidated into the whole-of-Government financial statements the Foundation will need to 
consider the adoption of AASB 1053 and associated amending standards. 

All other Australian accounting standards and interpretations with future commencement dates are either not applicable to Royal 
Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation's activities, or have no material impact on the Foundation. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

2. Fundraising Activities, Special Events, Donations and Bequests 

Bequests & memorial gifts 
Donations received 
Non-tax deductible gifts 
Hospital & university events 
Fundraising projects 
Total 

3. Research Grants and Clinical Trials 

Clinical trials 

Research grants 
Total 

4. Financial Income and Finance Costs 

Interest income on managed funds 
Interest income on bank deposits 
Dividend income on australian equity funds 
Total Finance Income 

Management fees* 
Total Finance Costs 

• Refer to note 1 (v) for further details. 

5. Other Revenue 

Hospital shop rental income 
Reimbursement of Bancroft Centre rental * 
Other 
Total 

• Refer note 7. 

6. Employee Expenses 

Employee Benefits 
Wages and salaries 
Annual leave expense• 
Employer superannuation contributions* 
Long service leave expense* 

Employee Related Expenses 
Workers compensation premium* 

Total 

• Refer to Note 1 (t). 

2012 
$ 

1,211,341 
834,597 
19,414 

285,366 
987,870 

3,338,588 

403,057 
287,233 
690,290 

9,801 
416,954 
163,047 
589,802 

41,447 
41,447 

18,900 
155,497 
32,440 

206,837 

1 ' 117,818 
26,502 
96,941 
21 ,668 

4,608 

1,267,537 

2011 
s 

494,150 
678,103 
21,140 

256,085 
893,131 

2,342,609 

229,353 
315,259 
544,612 

2,836 
308,266 
215,833 
526,935 

41,756 
41,756 

17,600 

83,816 
101,416 

91 3,728 
2,480 

82,899 
2,475 

3,166 

1,004,748 

17 



Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 20 11-12 

6. Employee Expenses (cont'd) 

2012 

$ 

The number of employees including both full-time employees and part-time employees measured on a 
full-time equivalent basis is: 

Number of employees 

7. Research Administration and Clinical Trials 

Bancroft Centre rental * 
Clinical trial expenses 
Salaries and associated on-costs 

Other research expenses 
Total 

* Refer to note 5 and note 19. 

8. Depreciation 

Depreciation was incurred in respect of: 
Furniture and fittings 
Computer equipment 

TV Operations equipment 
Total 

9. Other Expenses 

Insurance premiums- QGIF 
External audit fees* 

Non research grant expenditure 
Bank Fees 
Other administration expenses 
Total 

10 

155,497 
30,812 

262,337 
327,515 
776,161 

6,128 

9,956 
217 

16,301 

8,145 
19,420 
8,402 

15,911 
76,620 

128,498 

2011 

$ 

10 

(62,436) 

35,616 
298,206 
172,097 

443,483 

17,370 

17,370 

6,706 
16,750 
76,000 

7,498 
81,794 

188,748 

*Total audit fees paid to Queensland Audit Office relating to the 2011-12 financial statements are estimated 
to be $17,900 (2011: $17 ,270). 

There are no non-audit services included in this amount. 

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Current 

Petty cash and floats 
Cash at bank 
Cash management accounts and term deposits 
Total 

2012 

$ 

1,105 
842,803 

4,752,110 
5,596,018 

Cash at bank earns interest at variable rates between 0.05% and 6.26% at 30 June 2012, 
(2011: between 0.25% and 6.31%). 

Restated 
2011 

$ 

1,105 

676,978 
3,296,677 
3,974,760 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

11. Trade and Other Receivables 

Trade debtors 

GST receivable 
GST payable 

Accrued Income 
Investment income receivable 
Other receivables 
Total 

There was no provision made for impairment of receivables in 2011-12. 

12. Inventories 

Inventory held for distribution - at cost 

Total 

2012 
$ 

114,873 

1,055,829 
149,449 

1,282 
1,321,433 

2012 
$ 

26,209 

26,209 

Of the Inventories on hand at 30 June 2012, $26,209 (2011: $1 ,31 0) is expected to be realised within 12 

months. 

13. Financial Assets 

Current 
Held-to-maturity financial assets, at amortised cost: 
Term deposits 

Non Current 
Available-for-sale financial assets, at fair value: 
Managed fund 
Fixed Interest corporate debt 
Australian equity fund 
Asian equity fund 
Australian shares 
Total 

2,835,408 

865,048 
3,133,299 

9,240 
4,007,587 

Restated 
2011 

$ 

36,906 

44,834 
(32,201) 
12,633 

1,072,989 
98,817 

1,960 
1,223,305 

2011 
$ 

1,310 

1,310 

2,181 ,955 

891 '134 

2,805,111 
101,657 
12,383 

3,810,285 

The Foundation's exposure to credit, liquidity and market risk in relation to other financial assets is disclosed 
in note 21 . 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

14. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Furniture & fittings 
At cost 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Computer equipment 
At cost 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 

TV operations equipment 
At cost 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Total 

Property, Plant and Equipment Reconciliation 

Carrying Amount at 1 July 2011 
Acquisitions 
Depreciation 

Carrying Amount at 30 June 2012 

Furniture & 
Fittings 

$ 
24,412 

(6,128) 

18!284 

2012 
$ 

96,945 
(78,661} 
18,284 

48,171 
(23,693} 
24,478 

12,750 
(217} 

12,533 

55,295 

Computer 
Equipment 

$ 

34,434 
(9,956) 

241478 

There was no impairment loss recorded on property, plant and equipment in 2011-12. 

Furniture & Computer 
Fittings Equipment 

$ $ 
Carrying Amount at 1 July 2010 22,571 11,392 
Acquisitions 20,750 
Disposals (1,539) (11 ,392) 
Depreciation (17,370) 

Carrying Amount at 30 June 2011 24412 

There was no Impairment loss recorded on property, plant and equipment in 2010-11. 

15. Trade and Other Payables 

Trade creditors 
Accruals 
Research grant creditors 

GST receivable 
GSTpayable 

Total 

2012 
$ 

186,596 
48,154 

225,000 

(49,711) 
54,213 

4,502 

464,252 

TV Operations 
Equipment 

$ 

12,750 
(217) 

12.533 

TV Operations 
Equipment 

$ 

2011 
$ 

96,946 
(72,534) 
24,412 

13,737 
(13,737) 

24,412 

Total 
$ 

24,412 
47,184 

(16,301) 

55.295 

Total 

$ 
33,963 
20,750 

(12,931) 
(17,370) 

24412 

2011 
$ 

298,836 
368,288 
333,002 

1,000,126 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011 ~12 

16. Accrued Employee Benefits 

Current 
Wages outstanding 
Bonus outstanding 
Annual leave payable 
Long service leave payable 
Total 

17. other Current Liabilities 

PAYG taxable payable 
Superannuation payable 
Other 

18. Reconciliation of Operating Surplus to Net Cash from Operating Activities 

Surplus from continuing operations 
Non cash items: 

Depreciation expense 
Total finance cost 
Realised (gain) /loss on sale of availabl~for-sale financial assets 
Total finance income 
(lncrease)ldecrease in property, plant & equipment 

Change in assets and liabilities: 
(lncrease)ldecrease in held for sale assets 
(lncrease)ldecrease in trade receivables 
(lncrease)ldecrease in accrued income 
(lncrease)/decrease in GST payable 
(lncrease}/decrease in other receivables 
(lncrease}ldecrease in inventories 
(lncrease)ldecrease in prepayments/other 
lncrease/(decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase/( decrease) in accrued employee benefits 

Net cash from operating activities 

19. Commitments for Expenditure 

(a) Cancellable Operating Lease 

2012 
$ 

20,781 
47,997 
93,827 
15,392 

177,997 

15,468 
31,943 

87 
47,498 

2012 
$ 

3,428,717 

16,301 
41,447 

5,511 
(589,802) 

(77,966) 
17,160 
17,136 

676 
{24,899) 

8,460 
(533,485) 

60,804 

2,370,060 

2012 
$ 

Commitments under operating leases at reporting date are inclusive of anticipated GST and are payable as follows: 

Not later than one year 
Total 

25,800 
25,800 

Operating Lease represents a 75 year lease of half a floor in the Bancroft Centre of the Queensland Institute of 
Medical Research (QIMR) which requires two months notice in writing to terminate. 

2011 
$ 

15,831 
43,408 
44,487 
13,467 

117,193 

14,819 
25,616 

173 
40,608 

Restated 
2011 

$ 
1,879,587 

17,370 
41,756 

(71 ,237) 
(526,934) 

12,932 

298,750 
205,047 

(380,732) 
15,381 
2,967 

48,783 
(2,275) 
(5,637) 
42,551 

1,578,309 

2011 
$ 

25,800 
25,800 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

19. Commitments for Expenditure {cont'd) 

(b) Capital Expenditure Commitments 

Material classes of capital expenditure commitments inclusive of anticipated GST, contracted for at reporting date 
but not recognised in the accounts payable are as follows: 

2012 
Payable: 

Not later than one year 
Total 

20. Contingencies 

Butterfield Street car park 

During the 1997-98 financial year, Royal Brisbane Hospital Research Foundation entered into an agreement 
with Queensland Health to receive a fixed share of the car park income from the Butterfield Street car park. 
The agreement is for a period of 20 years and expires on 12 January 2018. The Butterfield Street car park was set 
up under a BOOT arrangement (Build, Own, Operate and Transfer) with the International Parking Group Pty Ltd. 

In 1998, as part ofthe arrangement, Royal Brisbane Hospital Foundation received an upfront payment of 
$2,425,511 (the initial rent). Under the Deed of Assignment dated 30 June 2000, the Foundation has agreed to the 
proportional refund of this initial rent in the event of the early termination of the lease. This amount Is being amortised 

over 20 years on a straight-line basis. Accordingly, as at 30 June 2012, the combined unexpired portion of this amount 
totalled $667,016 (2011: $788,290). Rental income from the Butterfield Street car park totalled $1,339,926 for the 

year (2011: $1,285,864) 

The members of the Board are of the opinion that provisions are not required in respect of this matters, as it is not 
probable that a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required or the amount is not capable of reliable 

measurement. 

21. Financial Instruments 

(a) Categorisation of financial instruments 

The Foundation has the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities: 

Category 

Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 
Available-for-sale financial assets 
Held-to-maturity financial assets 
Total 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade and other payables 
Total 

Note 

10 
11 
13 
13 

15 

2012 
$ 

5,596,018 
1,321,433 
4,007,587 
2,835,408 

13,760,446 

464,252 
464,252 

TV Plant & 
Equipment 

$ 

1,285,303 
1,285,303 

2,011 
$ 

3,974,760 
1,223,305 
3,810,285 
2,181,955 

11,190,306 

1,000,125 
1,000,125 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

21. Financial Instruments (cont'd) 

(b) Financial risk management 

Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation activities expose it to a variety of financial risks - credit risk, 
liquidity risk, market risk and interest rate risk. 

Financial risk management is implemented pursuant to Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation's policies. 
These policies focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects 
on the financial performance of the Foundation. The policy intends to maximise earnings within approved risk 
guidelines and to ensure the security of the funds. 

All financial risk is managed by the Foundation's Risk and Audit Committee under policies approved by the Board. 

Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation measures risk exposure using a variety of methods as follows: 

Risk Exposure Measurement method 

Credit risk Ageing analysis 
Liqudity risk Sensitivity analysis 

Market risk Interest rate sensitivity analysis, analysis of impact of market indicies 
(foreign exchange and equity shares) 

(c) Credit risk exposure 
Credit risk exposure refers to the situation where the Foundation may incur financial loss as a result of party to a 

financial instrument failing to discharge their obligation. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross 
carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any provisions for impairment. 

The following table represents the Foundation's maximum exposure to credit risk based on contractual amounts net of any 
allowances: 

Maximum exposure to credit risk 2012 2011 
Category Note $ $ 
Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 10 5,596,018 3,974,760 
Available-for-sale financial assets 13 4,007,587 3,810,285 

Held-to-maturity financial assets 13 2,835,408 2,181,955 
Total 6,842,996 5,992,240 

Financial Liabilities 
The carrying amount of payables represents the maxlmum exposure to credit risk. As such, payables are not included in 
the above disclosure. 

Financial Assets 
The carrying amount of receivables represents the maximum exposure to credit risk. As such, receivables is not included in 
the above disclosure. 

No collateral is held as security and no credit enhancements relate to financial assets held by the Foundation. 

The Foundation manages credit risk through the use of a credit management strategy. This strategy aims to reduce the exposure 
to credit default by ensuring that the Foundation invests with a highly reputable fund manager (JB Were Pty Ltd) and monitors 

all funds owned on a timely basis. 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

21. Financial Instruments (cont'd) 

(c) Credit risk exposure (cont'd} 

Financial Assets (cont'd) 
Exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. 

No financial assets and financial liabilities have been offset and presented net in the Statement of Financial Position. 

No provision has been made in the current financial year for impairment due to credit risk exposure. 

No financial assets have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or Impaired, and 
are stated at the carrying amounts as indicated. 

Ageing of past due but not impaired financial assets are disclosed in the following tables: 

2012 financial assets past due but not impaired 
Overdue 

Less than 30-60 61-90 More than 
30 days days days 90 days Total 

$ $ $ $ $ 
Trade and other receivables 996,213 7,969 0 317,250 1,321,433 

996,213 7,969 0 317,250 1,321,433 

2011 financial assets past due but not impaired (restated) 
Overdue 

Less than 30-60 61-90 More than 
30 days days days 90 days Total 

$ $ $ $ $ 
Trade and other receivables 994,198 14,064 11,981 203,062 1,223,305 

994,198 14,064 11,981 203,062 1,223,305 

(d) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk refers to the situation where the Foundation may encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated 
with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 

The Foundation is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of its payables. The Foundation manages liquidity risk through 
the use of a liquidity management strategy. This strategy aims to reduce the exposure to liquidity risk by ensuring 
the Foundation has sufficient funds available to meet employee and supplier obligations as they fall due. 
This is achieved by ensuring that minimum levels of cash are held within the various bank accounts so as to match 
the expected duration of the various employee and supplier liabilities. 

The following table sets out the liquidity risk of financial liabilities held by the Foundation. It represents the contractual 
maturity of financial liabilities, calculated based on undiscounted cash flows relating to the liabilities at reporting date. 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade and other payables 
Accrued employee benefits 
Other liabilities 

Note 

15 
16 
17 

2012 Payable In 
<1 year 1-5 years 

$ $ 

464,252 
177,997 
47,498 

689,748 

> 5 years 
$ 

Total 
$ 

464,252 
177,997 
47,498 

689,748 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

21. Financial Instruments (cont'd) 

(d) Liquidity risk (cont'd) 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade and other payables 
Accrued employee benefits 
Other liabilities 

(e) Market risk 

Note 

15 
16 
17 

<1 year 

$ 

1,000,125 
117,193 
40,608 

1,157,926 

2011 Payable In 
1-5 years 

$ 
> 5 years 

$ 

The Foundation is exposed to price risk through investments in managed funds, equity funds and Australian shares. 
To manage price risk Royal Brisbane and Women's Hospital Foundation has a diversified portfolio and monitors the impact 
of market price movements. 

The Foundation is exposed to interest rate risk through cash deposited in interest bearing accounts. 

Total 
$ 

1,000,125 
117,193 
40,608 

1,157,926 

The Foundation does not undertake any hedging in relation to interest risk and manages its risk as per the liquidity risk management 
strategy. 

(f) Interest rate sensitivity analysis for variable instruments 

The following interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts the outcome on profit or loss If variable interest rates would change by +/- 1% 
from the year-end rates applicable to the Foundation's financial assets and liabilities. 

With all other variables held constant, the Foundation would have a surplus and equity increase/(decrease) of$40,076 

(2011: $38,1 03). 

Carrying 2012 Interest rate risk 
Financial Instruments Amount -1% +1% 

Profit Equity Profit 
Available-for-sale financial assets 4,007,587 (40,076) (40,076) 40,076 

Potential Impact 4,007,587 (40,076) (40,076) 40,076 

The Foundation's sensitivity to interest has increased in the current period due to increased holdings of available-for-sale 

financial assets. 

Carrying 2011 Interest rate risk 
Financial Instruments Amount -1% +1% 

Profit Equity Profit 
Available-for-sale financial assets 3,810,285 {38,103) (38,103) 38,103 

Potential Impact 3,810,285 (38,103) (38,103) 38,103 

Equity 
40,076 

40,076 

Equity 
38,103 

38,103 
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21. Financial Instruments (cont'd) 

(g) Analysis of impact of market indicies 

A 10% movement (up or down) in the value of equities would not affect profit as the gain and loss on all investments is 
deferred until disposal. Equity (Fair Value Reserve) would change by $400,759/ ($400,759) positive I (negative) 10% 

movement (2011 : $381,029 I ($381,029)). 

(h) Fair Value 

The recognised fair values of financial assets and liabilities are classified according to the following fair value hierarchy that 
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making these measurements: 

Level 1 -fair values that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets/liabilities; 

Level 2 - fair values that are based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset/liability 
(other than unadjusted quoted prices); and 

Level 3 - fair values that are derived from data not observable in a market. 

According to the above hierarchy, the fair values of each class of asset recognised at fair value are as follows: 

Classification according to fair value 

Class Note hierachy 

Level1 Level2 Level3 
$ $ $ 

Financial Assets 
Fixed interest corporate debt 13 865,048 - -
Australian equities fund 13 3,133,299 . . 
Asian equity fund 13 - - -
Australian shares 13 9,240 . . 
Total 4,007,587 . . 

Classification according to fair value 

Class Note hierachy 
Level 1 Level2 Level3 

$ $ $ 
Financial Assets 
Managed fund 13 891,134 
Fixed interest corporate debt 13 - - -
Australian equities fund 13 2,805,111 - -
Asian equity fund 13 101,657 . -
Australian shares 13 12,383 . -
Total 3,810,285 . . 

The fair value of trade receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original transaction, less any 

provision for impainnent. 

2012 Total 
Carrying 
Amount 

$ 

865,048 
3,133,299 

-
9,240 

4,007,587 

2011 Total 
Carrying 
Amount 

$ 

891,134 

-
2,805,11 1 

101,657 
12,383 

3,810,285 
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Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 2011-12 

22. Key Executive Management Personnel and Remuneration 

{a) Key Executive Management Personnel 

The following details for key executive management personnel Include those positions that had authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Foundation during 2011-12. Further information on these positions can 
be found in the body of the Annual Report under the section relating to Executive Management. 

Current Incumbents 
Position Responsibilities Contract classification and Date appointed 

appointment authority to position 

Chief Executive Officer The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for Employment contract signed by 20 July 2009 
the efficient, effective and economic the Chairman of the Board within 
administration of the Foundation. his authority under the Hospital 

Foundations Act 1982. 

22. Key Executive Management Personnel and Remuneration (cont'd) 

(b) Remuneration 

Remuneration policy for the Foundation's key executive management personnel is set by the Chairman of the Board within his 
authority under the Hospital Foundations Act 1982. The remuneration and other terms of employment for the key executive 

management personnel are specified in employment contracts. 

The contracts provide for the provision of performance-related cash bonuses. 

For the 2011-12 year, remuneration of key executive management personnel increased by 3.2%, in accordance with Board policy. 

Remuneration packages for key executive management personnel comprise the following components:
• Short term employee benefits which include: 

Base - consisting of base salary, allowances and leave entitlements paid and provided for the entire year or for that part of the 
year during which the employee occupied the specified position. Amounts disclosed equal the amount expensed in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

* Long term employee benefits include long service leave accrued. 

• Post employment benefits include superannuation contributions. 

* Redundancy payments are not provided for within individual contracts of employment. Contracts of employment provide only 
for notice periods or payment in lieu of notice on termination, regardless of the reason for termination. 

* Performance bonuses may be paid or payable annually depending upon statisfaction of key criteria. Performance payments of 
the key executive management are capped at 5% of total fixed remuneration. The amounts payable are tied to the achievement of 
pre-determined Foundation and individual performance targets as agreed by the Board. 

Total fixed remuneration is calculated on a ''total cost" basis and includes the base and long term employee benefits. 
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22. Key Exec:utive Management Personnel and Remuneration (cont'd) 

(b) Remune,.tlon (cont'd) 

1 July 2011 - 30 June 2012 

Short Term Employee Post Employment 
Position Benefits Benefits Total Remuneration 

Base $'000 $'000 $'000 

Chief Executive Officer 176.5 15.9 192.4 

1 July 2010-30 June 2011 

Short Term Employee Post Employment 
Position Benefits Benefits Total Remuneration 

Base $'000 $'000 $'000 

Chief Executive Officer 171.0 15.4 186.4 

(c) Pelformance Payments 

The basis for performance bonuses paid or payable in the 2011-12 financial year is set out below: 

Position Date Paid Basis for payment 

Chief Executive Officer 10 July 2011 The cash performance bonus was calculated by reference to the 

Incentive scheme approved by the Board on 19 August 2011. 
The bonus paid equated to 5% as compared to the maxlum of 5% 
of the total fixed remuneration payable. 

The basis for performance bonuses paid or payable In the 2010-11 financial year is set out below: 

Position Date Paid Basis for payment 

Chief Executive Officer 12 July 2011 The cash perfonnance bonus was calculated by reference to the 
Incentive scheme approved by the Board on 26 August 2010. 
The bonus paid equated to 5% as compared to the maxlum of 5% 

of the total fixed remuneration payable. 
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22. Key Executive Management Personnel and Remuneration (cont'd) 

(c) Performance Payments (cont'd} 

The aggregate performance bonuses paid to all key executive management personnel are as follows: 

Key Executive Management Personnel 

23. Correction of Error 

2012 

$9,620 

2011 

$9,322 

a) In the prior year, the Foundation classified term deposits with an original maturity date of more than three months as 

cash and cash equivalents. In the current year, these amounts were reclassified as held-to-maturity financial assets. The 

effect of the correction of this error is a reclassification of term deposits from cash and cash equivalents to held-to-maturity 

financial assets in the Statement of Financial Position to the value of $2,171,023 (1 July 2010: $532,944). Refer to the table 

below for the effect of the correction. 

Due to the measurement criteria of AASB139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, held-to-maturity 

financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised costs using the effective interest rate 

method (refer to note 1(ab)). As a result of this requirement, the Foundation was also required to reclassify the accrued interest 

on term deposits at the reporting date from receivables to held-to-maturity financial assets in the Statement of Financial Position. 

The effect of this correction is a reclassification of accrued interest to the value of $10,993 (1 July 2010: $26,574) from accrued 

interest to held-to-maturity financial assets in the Statement of Financial Position. 

b) Due to a communication error with the fund managers, JBWere Pty Ltd, an error occurred in the amounts recorded 

in relation to dividend income on available-for-sale financial assets. The effect of the error was the overstatement of 

interest income on managed funds by $34,028, overstatement of interest income on bank deposits by $7,732 and an 

understatement in respect of dividend income by $41,761. The overall effect of this error on the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2012, was $nil. 

The effects of the corrections described above was documented in the table below: 

Corrections 

2011 (a) 

s 
Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 6,145,783 (2, 171,023) 

Trade and Other Receivables 1,234,237 (10,932) 
Held-to-maturity financial assets 2,181,955 

Total Current Assets 7,390,306 

Equity 

Accumulated surplus 9,629,592 

Fair value reserve 437,484 

Total Equity 10,067,076 

Restated 
2011 

$ 

3,974,760 

1,223,305 

2,181,955 

7,390,306 

9,629,592 

437,484 

10.067.076 
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23. Correction of Error (cont'd) 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Trade and Other Receivables 
Held-to-maturity financial assets 

Total Current Assets 

1 July2010 

$ 

4,216,782 
1,061,609 

5,633,934 

Corrections 
Restated 

(a) 1 July2010 

$ 

(532,944) 3,683,838 
(26,574) 1,035,035 
559,518 559,518 

5,633,934 
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Certificate of the Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to section 62(1) of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 (the 
Act), relevant sections of the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009 and other prescribed requirements. In accordance 
with section 62(1 )(b) of the Act we certify that in our opinion: 

a) the prescribed requirements for establishing and keeping the aocounts have been compiled with in all material respects; and 

b) the financial statements have been drawn up to present a true and fair view, in accordance with prescribed aocounting 
standards, of the transactions of Royal Brisbane & Women's Hospital Foundation (the Foundation) for the financial year 
ended 30 June 2012 and of the financial position of the Foundation at the end of that year. 

~J~~~ 
Warwick Parer AM 
Chairman 
30 August 2012 

Peter Treseder AM 
Chief Executive Officer 
30 August 2012 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Royal Brisbane and Women's Hospital Foundation 

Report on the Financial Report 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Royal Brisbane and Women's Hospital Foundation which comprises the 
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2012, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, and certificates given by the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. 

The Board's Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view In accordance with presa-ibed 
accounting requirements identified in the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and Performance Management 
Standard 2009, including compliance with Australian Accounting Standards. The Board's responsibility also includes such 
internal control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The audit was conducted in accordance 
with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing standards, which Incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those 
standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit is planned 
and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control, other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report including any mandatory financial reporting requirements 
approved by the Treasurer for application in Queensland. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 

Independence 

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all authorised auditors. The Auditor
General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities and can be removed only by Parliament. 

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not subject to direction by any person 
about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised. The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, 
access to aH documents and property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are 
signifiCant. 

Opinion 

In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009-

(a} I have received all the information and explanations which I have required; and 

(b) in my opinion-

(i} the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of accounts have been complied with 
in all material respects; and 

(ii) the financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed accounting standards, of 
the transactions of Royal Brisbane and Women's Hospital Foundation for the financial year 1 July 2011 to 
30 June 2012 and of the financial position as at the end of that year. 

VMDEWAAL 
as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland 

Signed at Brisbane on 31 August 2012 
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